




















































































































































































































































































































PUBLIC VERSION

limitation customers, end users, partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, property
managers, and/or sellers) to directly infringe the above-identified claims of the ’876 Patent through
at least draftingand distributinguser guides, online instruction materials, white papers, datasheets,
marketing materials, and online resources, such as websites. As set forth in Section V.G, HMD
had knowledge of the ’876 Patentand on information and beliefknew, and continues to know, that
its actions would induce infringement of the ’876 Patent.

290. HMD has contributed and continue to contribute to the infringement (literally or
under the doctrine of equivalents) of the above-identified claims of the *876 Patent by offering to
sell, selling, and/or importing a patented component constituting a material part of the invention,
knowing the same (see, e.g., Section VV.G) to be especially made or especially adapted for use in
infringement and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-
infringing use.

291. Photographs of a representative HMD Accused Product (HMD Skyline) are shown
in Exhibit 62.

292. A claim chart comparing claims 4-6 of the 876 Patent to the HMD Accused
Products is attached as Exhibit 67.

293. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart is preliminary
and exemplary, and Pantech reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a result of
information learned during discovery and positions taken by HMD in any investigation instituted
from this Complaint.

VI SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF IMPORTATION
294.  On information and belief, the OnePlus Accused Products, Lenovo Accused

Products, TCL Accused Products, Tinno Accused Products, and HMD Accused Products are each
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manufacturedoutside of the United Statesand sold forimportationinto the United States, imported
into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation.

A. OnePlus’s Specific Instances of Importation

295. OnePlus offers the OnePlus Accused Products for sale in the United States on

OnePlus’s website (https://www.oneplus.com/us/store/phone), as shown in Exhibit 68.

[ifonerLus Store Phone Tablet Wearables Audio More Products OneTopia Community Support v @

iy . T —

Al Phone Audio Wearables Tablets. Power &Cables  Cases & Protection Lifestyle Bundles

Series Recommended v

Flagship Series

Nord N Series

RAM/Storage
16/512GB
16/256 GB

12/256 GB

8/128GB

OnePlus 13R OnePlus 13 OnePlus 12
¢ WanGit f With Gt 6% oft

B $54099 ' From $84999 © From $74999

8
®

296. A sample of a representative OnePlus Accused Product, the OnePlus 13
(CPH2655), was manufactured in Chinaand imported into the United States on or before May 20,
2025, through OnePlus.

297. The sample OnePlus 13 (CPH2655), was purchased on May 19, 2025 through
OnePlus’s website, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in Washington, D.C. Exhibit 69
below shows a product packaging label identifying the product as a OnePlus 13 (CPH2655), and

identifying the country of manufacture as China.
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OnePlus 13 RAM: 1268
Model/Modéle: CPH2655 ROM: 256G8

. Black Eclipse
IC: 12739A - 0P23895 -
SKU/UGS: 5011111156 €0 %

I |
@i

0C/CO: 10818N
NCY
Date: 20241210

IMEI1: 866483070528153
IMEI2: 866493070528146

LT T —
i et 9 Snapdragon

6 921815 627944 Created Together with Our Community

A\ WARNING: /\ AVERTISSEMENT:
Cancer and Reproductive Harm- Cancer et troubles de la reproduction
oy DML L0 0 waw PESWarmnings.ca gov

Fabriqué en Chine

This phone is hearing aid compatible and the lowest conversational gain is 11.91 08
with a hearing aid, and 14.68 d8 without 2 hearing - ald

Ce téiéphone est compatible avec les aides auditives of ie gain de conversation le plus
faible est de 11.91 dB avec une aide auditive ef de 14 68 dB sans aide auditive

EXHIBIT 69

298. The following is an order conformation for the sample OnePlus 13 phone.
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Sr14r25, 135 PM

[ifouErLus  Sioe Phone  Tablst  WWeardbles  Audo S Onelopa Commuity  Support = &
6 L
Sgni
Thank you for your order!
B oo

W arg currently processng your order and we will email to gbu™ " @mayerbrown.com with confirmation mﬁ«-u&mhmée.

Shipping Detail

Estimated Delivery Time

‘ay, Tus 20

Shipping Information

Shipping Method
GM4/25, 1:35 PM

DrsiPuin Mord Buds 5 Pro Stasry Bk

Deownlcad OnePlus Store App

Enjoy Appexclusive benafits and get mare
immudialy offers nolifications now

Do P

OnePlus - OnePius (Uniled States)

Maha

Login./ Sign up

Traick ry orsar

Enupyour orders in one place and never |ose track.

2 ® F B

Oneflus - OneFlus (United States)

§79.99

$o7aa8
5T

dxaog msm
5496
$O70.04

“ar
at | I\

299.

EXHIBIT 70

The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.
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300. Oninformation and belief, the remaining OnePlus Accused Products are also made
overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.

B. Lenovo’s Specific Instances of Importation

301. Lenovo offers the Lenovo Accused Products for sale in the United States on

Lenovo’s website (e.9., at https://www.motorola.com/us/en/smartphones/), shown in Exhibit 71.

= 512 GB STORAGE 512 GB STORAGE 17B STORAGE
Y Filters motorola razr ultra 2025 motorola razr ultra 2025 motorola razr ultra 2025
Trail PANTONE Scarab

PANTONE Mountain Trai PANTONE Rio Red
Internal Storage

W 256GB(18) \ ‘n‘
W 128GB(7) v\k ;\ -m\\
| = L\

W TB(4)

Operating System $1,299.99 $1,499.99

tarting at $55/mo or 0% APR with afffem) Prequalify now Startin with a Prequalify now Starting at $63/mo or 0% APR with afffrm) Prequalify now

Buy Now Buy Now

178 STORAGE 17B STORAGE 178 STORAGE
B Mocha Mousse(?) motorola razr ultra 2025 motorola razr ultra 2025 motorola razr ultra 2025
s, n Trail PANTONE Cabaret

PANTONE Mountai PANTONE Rio Red .

-
A"

EXHIBIT 71
302. Asample of arepresentative Lenovo Accused Product, the Razr Ultra (XT2551-1),
was manufactured in Chinaandimportedinto the United States on or before May 19, 2025, through
Lenovo.
303. The sample Razr Ultra (XT2551-1) was purchased on May 14, 2025 through Best
Buy’s website, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in Washington, D.C. Exhibit 72
below shows product packaging labels identifying the product as a motorola razr ultra (XT2551-

1) and the country of manufacture as China. It also states that the product was imported.
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motorola

Includes: motorola razr ultra 2025, cable, guides, SIM tool

The handset is hearing aid compatible.

The volume control performance has been evaluated according to ANSI
C63.19-2019 and waiver DA-23-914. The lowest conversational gain is 8.7 dB
with a hearing aid, and 13,6 dB without a hearing aid.

g fee may apply:if you return or exchange this devic

Your device may not work if you alter its original software. Operating system

and preloaded content use a portion of the internal storage. Itéms imported;
See each item for country. of origin. Contains Li-ion battery, dispose per local
regulations and not as household waste. Certain features may not be available
in all areas. Contact your ‘service provider. for details, use of this device is
t to the terms of your wireless service plan.
: Not all di es, signals, or uses-are-compatible; check device specs, See
our wireless carrier for 5G coverage, access and network management details.
Terms and Conditions (including arbitration provision) from your wireless
ad | information restrictions and details. Product meets current
Frequency Exposure Guidelines, FCC Equipment Authorization ID:
ditional details within and at www.fcc.gov/oet/ea.
zed M Logo, MOTO and the MOTO family of marks are
ola Trademark Holdings, LLC. Pantone Chip Design ©
All rights reserved. This is an authorized Pantone-licensed
by Motorola, Corning and Gorilla are registered trademarks
All other trademarks are the property of their respective
rola Mobility LLC.
oduct can expose you to chemicals including lead, which
te of California to cause cancer and birth defects or other
For more information go to www.P65Warnings.ca.gov.

nanufactured by/for Motorola Mobility LLC, a wholly owned

VO.
PRODUCT CERTIFIED
FOR REDUCED
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT. VIEW SPECIFIC
ATTRIDUTES EVALUATED:

. | ECOLOGO | i co
s Snapdragon [0 UL 110

Dolby

|
MIX PRINTED WITH

Packaging | Supporting
anolble forestry

C166624

EXHIBIT 72

XT2551-1 motorola razr ultra 2025  16GB+512GB  PANTONE Scarad

P/N PBIIO0WUS

€ 9908756
MEIZ 350297990675646

QUL

&0 023553429 6 oo
“.".""I“I '”I"'“l MO® YDTXESSONEP

Date 2025-08-04
Accessores naviSualy marked

EXHIBIT 72
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304. The following is a proof of order for the sample razr ultra phone.

514125, 12:08 PM Best Buy Order Details

« See all orders

Order Details & Print {1} Print Gift Receipt

EUESJ_ Receipt

Purchase Date: May 14, 2025 Order Number: BEBY01-807058634208 Total: $1,377.99 Payment Details «

Shipment One

We'll let you know when it ships. Shipping Address
Andrew Huntsinger
1999 K STNW

Pre-Ordered MAYER BROWN LLP

WASHINGTON, DC 20006 US

Motorola - razr ultra 2025 512GB (Unlocked) - PANTOME Scarab

Make Shipping Changes
Model: PETTOMSUS Itern Total: £1,3771.99
SKU: 6625234 Product Price: $1,299.99 1
; et Store Pickup Instead
Quantity: 1
Sales Tax, Fees & Surcharges: 5$78.00
Cancel & Support Options

EXHIBIT 73

305. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.

306. Anothersample of arepresentative Lenovo Accused Product, the Lenovo Tab K11,
was manufactured in China and imported into the United States on or before June 4, 2025, through
Lenovo.

307. The sample Lenovo Tab K11 was purchased on June 4, 2025 through Lenovo’s
website, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in New York City. Exhibit 197 below
shows product packaging labels identifying the product as a Lenovo Tab K11 and the country of

manufacture as China.
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EXHIBIT 197

308. The following is a proof of order for the sample Lenovo Tab K11 tablet.

Your order summary:

ITEM DELIVERY METHOD QTY TOTAL PRICE
Lenovo Tab K11 LTE Get it by Mon. Jun
ﬂ ZADGO016US 09 1 5279.99
Billing Details:  Shipping Details: Sub total: $279.99
1221 Avenue of the Tax: §24.85
Americas Shipping: FREE
New York New York Total: $304.84
US-NY US-NY
10065 10065
United States of United States of
America America
PayPal
EXHIBIT 196

309. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.

310. Another sample of a representative Lenovo Accused Product that is a laptop
computer, the Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen 2 Intel (16”) Mobile Workstation, was manufactured
in Vietnam and imported into the United States on or before June 23, 2025, through Lenovo. The
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Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen 2 Intel (16”) Mobile Workstation is configured to incorporate the
sample ThinkPad Fibocom FM350-GL 5G Sub-6 GhZ M.2 WWAN Module for X1 Carbon Gen
11 (“ThinkPad Fibocom Module”), which was manufactured in China, sold through Lenovo’s
website, and imported into the United States on or before June 23, 2025, through Lenovo.
311. The sample Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen 2 Intel (16”) Mobile Workstation and
ThinkPad Fibocom Module were purchased on June 18, 2025, through Lenovo’s website, and
shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in New York City. Exhibit 199 below shows product
packaging labels identifying the product as a Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen 2 Intel (16”) Mobile

Workstation and the country of manufacture as Vietnam.

/\ California Prop 65 WARNING :

This product can expose you to chemicals
including lead, which is known to the State of
California to cause cancer and birth defects
or other reproductive harm. For more
information go to www.P85Warnings.ca.gov.

7526852140- 00010

1350 US-NIA
Made in Vietnam LPGCOBI11ZM K1
Manufactured for Lenovo Date: 2025-04-26

-

EXHIBIT 199
312.  The sample ThinkPad Fibocom Module was also shipped to Complainant’s

counsel’s office in New York City, and received the same day as the Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen
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2 Intel (16”) Mobile Workstation was received. Exhibit 200 below showsproduct packaging labels

identifying the product as a ThinkPad Fibocom Module and the country of manufacture as China.

EXHIBIT 200

313. The following is a proof of order for the sample Lenovo Think Pad P16v Gen 2

Intel (16””) Mobile Workstation computer and the sample ThinkPad Fibocom Module.
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Your order summary:
DELIVERY
ITEM METHOD QTY TOTAL PRICE
) ThinkPad Fibocom FM350-GL 5G Sub-6 GHzGet it by
\\ _~ M.2 WWAN Module for X1 Carbon Gen 11 yon )0 23 1 $282.15
7 4XC1M72800
ThinkPad‘ P16v Gen 2 Intel (16") Mobile Get it by
Workstation Mon. Jun 23 1 $2,319.84
21KX002PUS :
Billing Details:  Shipping Details: Sub total: $3,201.99
1221 Avenue Of The 1221 Avenue Of The eCoupon Savings: -$500.00
Americas Americas Cart Threshold Savings: -$100.00
New York New York Tax: $230.93
1
US-NY US-NY Shipping: FREE
10020-1001 10020-1001 Total: $2,832.92
United States of United States of
America America
Card Payment

EXHIBIT 201
314. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.
315.  Oninformation and belief, the remaining Lenovo Accused Products are also made

overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.
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C. TCL’s Specific Instances of Importation

316. TCL offers the TCL Accused Products for sale in the United States on TCL’s

website (e.g., at https://www.tcl.com/us/en/products/mobile), shown in Exhibit 74.

TCL 50 SERIES TABLETS

LEARN MORE (HTTPS:, JTCL,COM, EN/PRODUCTS/MOBILE, L-

LEARN MORE (HTTPS://WWW.TCL.COM/US/EN/PRODUCTS/MOBILE/TCL-

50-SERIES)
IAB)

Exhibit 74
317. A sample of arepresentative TCL Accused Product, the TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER
5G (T702Z2), was manufactured in China and imported into the United States on or before May 19,
2025, through TCL.
318. The sample TCL Accused Product TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER 5G (T702Z) was
purchased on May 15, 2025 through Boost Mobile, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office
in Washington, D.C. Exhibit 75 below shows product packaging labels identifying the product as

a TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER 5G (T702Z2) and identifying the country of manufacture as China.
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* rcL 50

EXHIBIT 75

SKU: TCLT702ZBL128 TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER 5G BLUE 128 GB

I
S
0

IMEI1 016605000490563

AL
Made in China
" v ASO
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EXHIBIT 75

319. The followingis a proof of order from that sample TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER 5G

(T702Z2) phone.

Your Order Details

Hi Brittany,

Thanks for your order!
We've included your order details below and we're working on shipping it out ASAP.

YWou'll receive a shipment confirmation email with tracking details once it has been
shipped.

Order Details

Order Number 9777-435148-1156
Line 1

Unlimited 330.00
TCL 50 XL NXTPAPER 5G $149.99
Discount $10.00
Shipping FREE
Taxes 9.1
Surcharges $0.00
Total Paid Today £174.10

320. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.
321. Another sample of a representative TCL Accused Product that is a tablet, the TCL
TAB 10 NXTPAPER 5G, was manufactured in China and imported into the United States on or

before June 19, 2025, through TCL.
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322. The sample TCL Accused Product TCL TAB 10 NXTPAPER 5G was purchased
on June 11, 2025, through Verizon Wireless, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in

New York City. Exhibit 255 below shows product packaging labels identifying the product as a

TCL TAB 10 NXTPAPER 5G and identifying the country of manufacture as China.

EXHIBIT 255

EXHIBIT 255
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323. Thefollowingis a proof of order from that sample TCL TAB 10 NXTPAPER 5G

tablet.

Shipping ( Track my order )

We're preparing your order for shipping.

Devices

TCLTAB 10 NXTPAPER 5G

Mobile number ending in 1131

Your device is back-ordered.
Expected deliver by date: 6/20/2025

EXHIBIT 195
324. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.
325. On information and belief, the remaining TCL Accused Products are also made
overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.

D. Tinno’s Specific Instances of Importation

326. The Tinno Accused Products are offered for sale through Tinno’s US website (Ex.
18), through websites of U.S. telecommunications network providers such as Boost Mobile (Ex.
19), Cricket Wireless (Ex. 20), AT&T (Ex. 21), and through websites of other U.S. retailers such
as Walmart (Exs. 22 and 77) shows an example of a Tinno Accused Product, the Cricket Debut

S3, on sale through Walmart’s website:
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= $ 3
s Sweet phone. Sweet price. Sponsored @ 1 99 %
ATETprepaid Tt 4
Cricket Wireless
M . $34.88
Cricket Wireless Debut S3 64GB, 4GB
R Price when purchased online @'
O RAM (Prepaid) - Anchor Gray
Free 14-day returns.
S 39) | 103ratings e
b @ Other options from $34.00
L]
;
About this item
l = 656" HD+ display
= * 4000mAh battery
< > * Feature packed 13MP+2MP dual-rear camera Walmart Accident
- * Powerful octa-core processor & 64GB storage Plan by Allstate
. 3
i . NFCfc?r mobile payments . What's coverad
it * Android 14 - the latest features and security
« Cricket 2 Year Worry-Free Warranty D 2-Year Plan -
. ) $10.00
I View full itern details
How you'll get this item:

EXHIBIT 77

327. A sample of a representative Tinno Accused Product Cricket Debut S3 was
manufactured in China and imported into the United States on or before June 26, 2025, through
Tinno.

328. The sample Tinno Accused Product Cricket Debut S3 was purchased on June 26,
2025 through Walmart (https://www.walmart.com/ip/Cricket-Wireless-Debut-S3-64GB-Anchor-
Gray-Prepaid-Smartphone/6516517798, Ex. 77), and delivered to Complainant’s counsel’s home
in El Cajon, California. Exhibit 78 below shows product packaging identifying the productas a
Cricket Debut S3, identifying the country of manufacture as China, and identifying the product as

an imported product.
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cricket
Debut S3°

Powerful, all-day battery

Immersive 6.6" HD+
display with LED flash

13MP+2MP dual-rear
cameras for crisp photos

64GB built-in storage,
expandable up to 512G8?

B
MODEL: U572AC

FCC ID: XD6US72AA

Voltage Rating: 3.86V

T

SKU: DEMK4129

M

MFD: 241025 .
000 AR

IMEI: 863454070963033

/A\WARNING: Non-removable battery cover
and battery. Do not attempt to disassemble or
remove the battery. Doing so may result in
personal injury and damage to the battery or
device.

/N\AVISO:Tapa y bateria de bateria no
extraibles. No intentes desarmar o quitar la
bateria. Hacer esto puede causar lesiones
corporales y dafiar la bateria o el teléfono.

Made in China

cricket
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EXHIBIT 78

329. The following is a proof of order from that sample Cricket Debut S3phone.
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Walmart

Order date: Thu, Jun 26, 2025
Order number: 2000134-65402188

Thanks for your order, Graham!

L2008 IwnY

What to expect

* Delivery from store

() Arrives Thu, Jun 26, 7:11pm - T:19pm

o - c:io. cr. 92020

1 2 items See all

EXHIBIT 79 (personal information redacted)

330. On information and belief, the remaining Tinno Accused Products are also made

overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.
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Publicly available importation records show that Tinno regularly imports the Tinno

Accused Products into the United States. For example, on or around May 9, 2025, Tinno imported

the WIKO VOIX products, which were made in Vietnam, into the United States from China.

Contact info

Type

IMPORTER

NOTIFY PARTY

SHIPPER

Product details

Container no.

TRHU1376310

Name Address
TINNO USA INC. 2301 WEST PLAND PARKWAY SUITE 102 PLAND TX 75075 US
-NOT AVAILABLE- -NOT AVAILABLE-

TINNO VIETNAM COMPANY

LIMITED HAI PHONG VN

Description area

ANDROID SMARTPHONE HTS: 851713

PLOT CO3 OF PLOT CN12 AN DUONG INDU HONG PHONG TOWRNSHIP, AN DUONG DISTR

Faollow comparny

‘ Follow
‘ Follow

‘ Follow

Us Port

Foreign Port
Country of Origin
Place of Receipt
Bill of Lading
Arrival Date
Quantity
Container Count
Weight (LB [ KG)
CBM

House vs Master

Other info

Caontainer no.

TRHUIZTE 310

Master Bill of Lading

Leng Beach, Califarnia
Yantian

China

HAIPHOMNG
EXDOB5TODE6E 38
2025-05-09

8 PKG

1
7382.00 f 3360.00
14 CM

H

ZIMUHAIBDT34442

Deseription area

VOIX MADE IN VIETNAM

Exhibit 80

-91 -
OnePlus Ex

. 1025 Page 124 of 158



PUBLIC VERSION

E. HMD’s Specific Instances of Importation

332. HMD offers the HMD Accused Products for sale in the United States on HMD’s

website (e.g., at https://www.hmd.com/en_us/smartphones), shown in Exhibit 23.

G @ % hmdcom/en_us/smartphones

Smartphones

HMD Fusion Save now for a limited time
Restyle. Revamp. Repair. HMD Skyline HMD XR21
$299.99 Whoever said the sky is the limit? Relentless reliability

$349.99 5439839 $439.99
Learn more
Learn more Learn more

Exhibit 23
333. Asampleofarepresentative HMD Accused Product, the HMD Skyline (TA-1600),
was manufactured in Chinaandimportedinto the United States on or before May 16, 2025, through
HMD.
334. The sample HMD Skyline (TA-1600) was purchased on May 15, 2025 through
HMD, and shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in Washington, D.C. Exhibit81 below shows

a product packaging label identifying the product as the Skyline (TA-1600) and identifying the

country of manufacture as China.
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IMEI! 355876370960118
IMEIZ 355876370960126

o ,mvccnummsoo

e NI

I ' IMEN 356876370960118
IMEI2 355876370960126

EXHIBIT 81

335. The following is a proof of order from the sample HMD Skyline (TA-1600).
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Order details

QOrdernumber USP64927

= Contact

QDUCE Igross @My erhrown. com

& Delivery © Payment
Shipping Address Billing Address

Andrew Huntsinger Graham Buccigross
1202265514 16503512067

1988 K Street Northwest |

Mayer Brown LLP ElCajon, California, 92020
‘Washington, District of United States

Columbia, 20006

United States

Shipping Detalls
Shipping fee FREE

 Your order

1item

HMD Skyline - 8 GB, 256 OB, DS, $499.99
L Twisted Black
1x
Subtotal $499.99
Shipping Frea
DC STATE TAX - DISTRICT OF COLUMELA s0.00
Total (USD) $499.99

336. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.

337. Anothersample of arepresentative HMD Accused Product thatisatablet, the HMD
T21, was manufactured in China and imported into the United States on or before June 25, 2025,
through HMD.

338. The sample HMD T21 was purchased on June 23, 2025, through Amazon.com, and
shipped to Complainant’s counsel’s office in Washington, D.C. Exhibit 204 belowshows a product
packaging label identifying the product as the T21 and identifying the country of manufacture as

China.
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HMD T21 TA-1597 WIFI 4/128
SKUF20ENVIAOTA
PN 2 11

Made in China
04/2025

FCC ID; 2AJOTTA-1597 m
T
. ‘

10006057171

EXHIBIT 204

339. The following is a proof of order from the sample HMD T21.

Order Details

Order placed June 23, 2025 Order # 114-6492596-7713059

Ship to Payment method Order Summary
Brady Nash Mastercard ending in 1358 Item(s) Subtotal: $149.99
MAYER BROWN LLP 1999 K ST NW Shipping & Handling: $0.00
WASHINGTON, DC 20006-1118 Total before tax: $149.99
United States Estimated tax to be $9.00
collected:
Grand Total: $158.99

Arriving today

Package is out for delivery.

HMD T21 | Android 13| Up to 3-Day Battery Life | 10.36" HD Display | 4/64GB | 18W
Fast Charge | 8MP Rear Camera | 8MP Front Camera | US Version | Black Steel

Sold by: Amazon.com

Supplied by: Other

$149.99

EXHIBIT 202
340. The purchase occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents.

341. On information and belief, the remaining HMD Accused Products are also made

overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.
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VII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS UNDER THE
HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE

342. On information and belief, the OnePlus Accused Products, Lenovo Accused
Products, TCL Accused Products, Tinno Accused Products, and HMD Accused Products are
classified under at least the following subheadings of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the
United States: 8517.12.00 (mobile phones) and 8471.30.01,8471.41.01, or 8471.49.00 (handheld
computers); 8473.30,8471.60.90 (other input/output units, whether or notcontaining storage units
combined in the same house); and 8471.41.01 (Other automatic data processing machines:
Comprising in the same housing at least a central processing unit and an input and output unit,
whether or not combined).

343. These classifications are exemplary in nature and are not intended to restrict the
scope of any exclusion order or other remedy ordered by the Commission.

VIII. RELATED LITIGATION

344. The 839 Patent is the only patent currently subject to domestic litigation or
administrative proceedings. Specifically, appeals currently pending in the Federal Circuit
involving Pantech and OnePlus, Case Nos. 25-1628 and 25-1629, are appeals after a jury verdict
in Pantech’s favor of infringement and no invalidity of the 839 Patent in the Eastern District of
Texas, Pantech Corp. v. OnePlus Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., No. 5:22-cv-00069 (E.D. Tex.
June 3, 2022).

IX. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY

345.  An industry as required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3)
exists in the United States as a result of domestic activities relating to products that practice the

Asserted Patents. These activities include the current significant and substantial domestic
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investments of Pantech’s licensees, including without limitation BLU Products, Inc. (“BLU”), and
LG Electronics, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“LGE”) (collectively, the “DI Licensees”).

346. Collectively,the DI Licensees have made significantdomestic investmentsin plant,
equipment, labor and capital, and made substantial domestic investments in engineering and
research and development related to products that practice and are protected by the Asserted
Patents.

A. BLU’s Domestic Industry Products

347. Pursuantto Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Pantechhas attachedas Exhibit 146
a copy of its confidential licensing agreement with DI Licensee BLU (the “BLU Patent License

Agreement”).

348. I —
-

349. The BLU domestic industry products are smartphones and a tablet that are
compliant with the LTE, LTE-A, and 5G cellular standards (collectively, the “BLU DI Products”).
A chart identifying each of the BLU DI Products, their LTE, LTE-A, and/or 5G standards
compliance, other functionalities, and pertinent hardware components is attached as Exhibit 140.

350. An example of a BLU DI Productis the BLU Bold K50. A sample Bold K50 is

depicted below:
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EXHIBIT 203

351. To establish a domestic industry with respect to the ’839, *503, ’344, and 876

Patents, Pantech relies on the investments and activities in the United States by licensee BLU,

relating to the BLU DI Products, as follows:

Asserted Patent

Exemplary BLU DI Products Practicing and Protected by Patent

839 Patent

BOLD K30, BOLD K20, BOLD K5, BOLD K50, BOLD N3, BOLD
K10, G65L, G35, G44 Plus, G84, G74, G64, G64L, G44, G34, G93,
G73L, G73, G63, G53 (MTK), G33 (USC), G33 (MTK), F5 5G, J12,
View 5 Pro, View 5, VIEW SPEED 5G, and M10L Pro 2023

’503 Patent

BOLD K30, BOLD K20, BOLD K5, BOLD K50, BOLD N3, BOLD
K10, G65L, G35, G44 Plus, G84, G74, G64, G64L, G44, G34, G93,
G73L, G73, G63, G53 (MTK), G33 (USC), G33 (MTK), F5 5G, J12,
View 5 Pro, View 5, and VIEW SPEED 5G

344 Patent

BOLD K30, BOLD K20, BOLD K5, BOLD K50, BOLD N3, BOLD
K10, G65L, G35, G44 Plus, G84, G74, G64, G64L, G44, G34, G93,
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Asserted Patent Exemplary BLU DI Products Practicing and Protected by Patent

G73L, G73, G63, G53 (MTK), G33 (USC), G33 (MTK), F5 5G, J12,
View 5 Pro, View 5, VIEW SPEED 5G, and M10L Pro 2023

BOLD K30, BOLD K20, BOLD K5, BOLD K50, BOLD N3, BOLD K10,
G65L, G35, G44 Plus, G84, G74, G64, G64L, G44, G34, G93, G73L, G73,
876 Patent | 563, G53 (MTK), G33 (USC), G33 (MTK), F5 5G, J12, View 5 Pro, View
5, VIEW SPEED 5G, and M10L Pro 2023

1. Technical Prong

352.  BLU, throughthe BLU DI Products, practices atleastone claim of each of the *839,
’503, ’344, and *876 Patents. Exs. 87-91. The claims practiced by the BLU DI Products are listed

in the below chart:

Asserted Patents | Domestic Industry Claims
’839 Patent 9-12

’503 Patent 5,7,8

’344 Patent 2,6

’876 Patent 4-6

353. Exhibit 141 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary BLU DI Products
practice claims 9-12 of the 839 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted as
examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited BLU DI Product practices those claims,
as will be further established during the investigation.

354. Exhibit 142 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary BLU DI Products
practice claims 5, 7, and 8 of the *503 Patent, based on their compliance with LTE-A. Exhibit 143
is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary BLU DI Products practice claims 5, 7, and 8 of
the 503 Patent, based on their compliance with 5G. The representative products shown within are
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charted as examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited BLU DI Product practices
those claims, as will be further established during the investigation.

355.  Exhibit 144 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary BLU DI Products
practice claims 2 and 6 of the *344 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted
as examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited BLU DI Product practices those
claims, as will be further established during the investigation.

356. Exhibit 145 is a claim chart showing how the BLU DI Products practice claims 4-
6 of the *876 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted as examples only, and
the chart demonstrates how each cited BLU DI Product practices those claims, as will be further
established during the investigation.

357. The identification of elements presented in these claim charts are preliminary and
exemplary, and Pantech reserves the right to modify its technical domestic industry theories as a
result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any

investigation instituted from this Complaint.

2. Economic Prong
358. There is a domestic industry as defined under 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A), (B),
and/or (C), comprising significant investments made in the United States by BLU in facilities and
equipment, employment of labor and capital, and substantial investment in exploitation of the
Asserted Patents. Specific, non-limiting examples of such investments are set forth below.

359. The BLU DI Products fall within the scope of the BLU Patent License Agreement.
360. |
.
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361. BLU Products, Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the State of Florida
with its principal place of business at 8600 NW 36th Street, Ste. 300, Doral, Florida 33172. See
Ex. 132 at 2; Ex. 190 at 1.

362. BLU’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the BLU DI
Products and the 839, ’503, ’344, and ’876 Patents include significant investments and
expendituresin facilitiesand equipment, marketingand sales, and significantemployment of labor
and capital.

363. BLU’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the BLU DI
Products and the ’839, ’503, *344, and *876 Patents further include substantial investments in the
exploitation of the technology claimed by these Asserted Patents.

364. Oninformation and belief, BLU s significantinvestments in labor and capital relate
to, among other things, the design, research and development, engineering, testing, compliance,
distribution, warranty and repair, and customer service and support of mobile devices, including
the BLU DI Products. BLU’s substantial investments in the exploitation of the technology claimed
by the *839, ’503, *344, and 876 Patents are based on investments in design, research and
development, and engineering relating to technology claimed by the *839, °503, ’344, and ’876
Patents, which include the BLU DI Products.

365. BLU only sells smartphones and tablets. Therefore, most, if not all of BLU’s
investments are tied to the BLU DI Products. For instance, all of the products that BLU currently

sells in the United States support LTE, LTE-A, and/or 5G connectivity, and are therefore BLU DI
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Products. All of the products that BLU currently sells in the United States comply with LTE, and
are therefore BLU DI Products that utilize the technology claimed by the *839, 344, and 876
Patents. Further, all of the smartphones that BLU currently sells in the United States are LTE-A
compliant, and therefore utilize the technology claimed by the ’503 Patent.

366. BLU has represented that “[w]hile it is true that BLU devices can be found
throughout the world, BLU’s operations are solely based in the Southern District of Florida.” Ex.
132 at 4-5.

367. On information and belief, BLU does not manufacture the BLU DI Products.
Therefore, essentially all of BLU’s business activities relating to BLU DI Products that have been
and are sold in the United States have been and continue to be conducted within the United States,
using United States facilities, equipment, employees, and investments.

368. As a U.S. company headquartered in Doral, Florida, BLU, the self-proclaimed
“fastest-growing reputable brands in the mobile industry” is a market leader in unlocked devices.
Ex. 133 at 2. Accordingto data generated by the International Data Corporation, between 2020
and 2024 BLU sold more than 9.9 million devices in the United States and had sales exceeding
$167 million. See Ex. 205.

369. In 2019, BLU contracted with Verizon to bring BLU devices, including BLU DI
Products, to Verizon customers. Ex. 135 at 3. As of 2025, BLU has sold over 70 million of its
devices globally. Ex. 133 at 2.

370. BLU’s Floridaheadquarters consists of a warehouse facility spanningover 800,000
square feet. Ex. 134 at 1. BLU additionally has 13 local offices, between representatives and
subsidiaries, throughout the Miami, Florida, region. Id. On information and belief, because BLU’s

only headquarters is in Florida, BLU designs the BLU DI Products in Florida.
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371. On information and belief, BLU invests substantial amounts on its facilities and
equipment in the United States that support product development, importation, pre-delivery
activities such as product deployment, supply chain management, logistics, and distribution, as
well as post-sale activities, including technical support, customer service, and warranty and repair
service for the BLU DI Products.

372. Oninformationand belief, BLU invests significantamounts in salary and personnel
expenses for its employees in the United States. BLU has over 300 employees. Id. Employees at
BLU’s Florida headquarters include, among others, sales personnel, logistics personnel, product
managers, and customer service representatives. Ex. 136 at 1.

373. BLU engages in substantial advertising for its products, including the BLU DI
Products. On informationand belief, BLU invested, created, and developed, “BLU Products Media
Relations” to facilitate its advertising for its products. See
https://www.bluproducts.com/news/2018-pure-view.html (Press release published by BLU
Products Media Relations), Ex. 254. For example, BLU created its own U.S. YouTube account
which has amassed over 57,300 subscribers.
https://www.youtube.com/@BLUProductsGlobal/videos, Ex. 138. BLU also has also invested in
a dedicated U.S. Facebook page which has generated over 966,000 followers.
https://www.facebook.com/BLU.Products, Ex. 137 at 1. BLU has additionally invested in
substantial advertising via its U.S. Instagram page wherein it has posted over 4,000 times and has
cultivated over 118,000 followers. https://www.instagram.com/blu_products/, Ex. 139. These few
examples of BLU’s advertising of its products, including the BLU DI Products, provide support

for its substantial investments in labor, facilities, equipment, and research and development.
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374. BLU also invests substantial capital in advertising its individual product lines,
including the BLU DI Products, through focused marketing advertisements. For example, BLU
Products Media Relations, through the expenditure of significant labor, capital, and other
resources, advertised the BLU DI Products, such as the BLU G91 MAX on the internet via online
articles.  See  https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/blu-smartphones-launches-its-1st-
flagship-for-2022-bringing-optimal-balance-to-end-users-with-the-new-g91-max-
301478653.html, Ex. 191. BLU also announced “The Iconic BOLD Smartphones Return: BLU
Launches the All-New BOLD N3, Elevating Style and Performance to New Heights!” in
September, 2023.. https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/the-iconic-bold-smartphones-
return-blu-launches-the-all-new-bold-n3-elevating-style-and-performance-to-new-heights-
301932744 .html, Ex. 192. These examples further illustrate some of BLU’s significant
investments in plant, equipment, labor, and capital relating to design, customer service, and
support of the BLU DI Products.

375. Additionally, BLU has also specifically advertised the BLU DI Products on its
dedicated YouTube, Facebook, and Instagram platforms. For example, “Meet the K50: Powerful,
Portable & Affordable —5G Under $200!” was posted to the BLU YouTube channel on September
11, 2024. https://lwww.youtube.com/watch?v=DGgtRS240qgU. As an additional example, BLU
specifically advertised the G64 on its dedicated Facebook platform on June 11, 2025.
https://www.facebook.com/story.php?story fbid=1140976518065515&id=100064595324910&r
did=IER92LGCWtORCTBL#, Ex. 193. BLU also advertised its BLU F5 5G, another BLU DI
Product, on June 4, 2025. https://www.facebook.com/BLU.Products/posts/fast-affordable-and-

now-even-cheaper-get-the-blu-f5-5g-for-just-99-unlocked-on-a/1135175141978986/, Ex. 194.
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These additional examples of BLU’s substantial investment in U.S. advertising substantiate and
further demonstrate its domestic industry.

376. Taken together, BLU’s domestic investments satisfy the economic prong with
respect to the Asserted Patents under subsections (A), (B), and (C) of Section 337(a)(3).

377. BLU isexpected to provide additional bases and supporting information under this
section through discovery or otherwise. Such bases and information are expected to include,
without limitation, data on BLU’s domestic investments in labor (including information on the
number of domestic employees, responsibilities of employees, and salaries and other costs
associated with such employees), facilities (including expenditures on facilities), equipment
(including information on types and cost of equipment implemented at facilities), and R&D in
mobile devices, including the BLU DI Products. Discovery from BLU is also expected to provide
bases by which to apportion overall domestic investments to the BLU DI Products, such as through
percentage of sales made up by such products or through records identifying work performed.

B. LGE’s Domestic Industry Products

378.  Pursuantto Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Pantech has attached as Exhibit 83
a copy the agreement LGE a license to the Asserted Patents (the “LGE Patent License
Agreement”).

379. I
.
I

380. The LGE domestic industry products are telematics control units (“TCUs”) and
application processor modules (“AP Modules”), which are modules that are incorporated into

automobiles, including in the U.S., that provide cellular connectivity, compliant with the LTE,
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LTE-A, and 5G cellular standards (collectively, the “LGE DI Products™). A chart identifying each
of the LGE DI Products, their LTE, LTE-A, and/or 5G standards compliance, other functionalities,
and pertinent hardware components is attached as Exhibit 84.

381. An example of an LGE DI Product that is a TCU is the LGE model number
TTA20ANEBN. The TTA20ANEBN is used in many General Motors cars that are made, sold,
and used in the U.S., such as the 2025 Chevrolet Trax, 2024 Chevrolet Trax, 2024 Cadillac XT5,
2024 Chevrolet Blazer, 2024 Chevrolet Equinox, 2024 GMC Terrain, 2023 Cadillac XT5, and
2023 Chevrolet Blazer model trims. The TTA20ANEBN has General Motors part number

86579859. A sample TTA20ANEBN from a 2024 Chevrolet Trax is depicted below:

T

548

BX CHASSIS BRAIN BOX
Condition: 1933

VINKL77LGE27RC 128334
Damage Code:

EXHIBIT 85
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@LG =y

STID : 165627036 Model

TTAZDANEBN
IME] . 356518148314230 Pri Pwr . 12\ 1
MSI . 310170128205632 Contains FCC 1T

ICCID * 890117043212820563%2  Contains IC - 2703H - GEN11NA
SIN - A08VIZCESR 148 MADE IN VIETNAM - 08179023

EXHIBIT 85
382. The LG TTA20ANEBN TCU is compliant with the LTE and LTE-A cellular
standards. For instance, AT&T’s website (https://iotdevices.att.com/certified-device-list.aspx)

shows thatthe device isa factory installed TCU and complies with LTE category 9, which supports

LTE-A and carrier aggregation:

w Radio Technol... ¥ LTE Technology

Manufacturer vy Model Name/Mumber v Device Type

LG Electronics TTA20ANMEBN TCU - Factory Installed 4G LTE,3G,2G CAT 9 m

EXHIBIT 86
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383. To establish a domestic industry with respect to the *839, *503, 344, and ’876
Patents, Pantech relies on the investments and activities in the United States by licensee LGE,
relating to products that practice and are protected by such patents (collectively, “LGE DI

Products™), as follows:

Asserted Patent | Exemplary LGE DI Products Practicing and Protected by Patent

TTA20ANEBN, TLVUW3IU-N, TFGMEIBBCD1, TFGMEIBBCD2,
TFGMEIBBCD3, TMOSFNNAGMO, TMOSFNNAGM1, TN1T23NN,
TFHOBINNOD1, TLVHMS3IU-N, TLVLP3IU-N, TTA20BNGNN,
TTA20BNGBN, TLVLM3IU-N, Gen10BTNBU, TTA20BNENN,
TTA20BNEBN, TVA20ANFNN, TVA20ANFBN, TTA20ANENN,
TTA20ANEBN, Gen10ALNB, Genl10AL, Gen10BLNB, Gen10BL,
TL3HEB-N, TL3LNB-N, Gen10DLNB, Gen10DL, Gen10CLNB,
Genl0CL, TTAI9ANENN, TTA19ANEBN, Gen10BTBU, Gen10LNB,
Genl0L, TLVHE4IU-N, TLVHWS3IU-N, TN1R23NN, TLVUE4IU-N,
TLVUWB3IU-N, TLVUMS3IU-N, TLHOBINNOD1, TCAA19ANANN(A),
TLHOBENNOD1, TLHOBDNNOB2, TLHOBDNNOB1, TL21BNNZ2,
TL21BNN1, TL19BNN, TFHOBINNODZ2, Gen10, TM12ANNAGMO,
Genl0A, Genl0D, Gen10C, Gen11NAN, Gen10B, TMO1GAN-N,
TMO1LA-N, TMO1LANAJL, TMO3LNNATYO0, TMOSNNNABMO,
TM15FNNAHDO, TM15FNNATYO0, TM19FNNAHD2,
TMO3LNNAHDO, and TMO3LNNATY1

’839 Patent

TLVUW3IU-N, TFGMEIBBCD1, TFGMEIBBCD2, TFGMEIBBCD3,
TMOSFNNAGMO, TMOSFNNAGM1, TN1T23NN, TFHOBINNOD1,
TLVHMSIU-N, TTA20BNGNN, TTA20BNGBN, TTA20BNENN,
TTA20BNEBN, TVA20ANFNN, TVA20ANFBN, TTA20ANENN,
’503 Patent TTA20ANEBN, TTAL1I9ANENN, TTALI9ANEBN, TLVHE4IU-N,
TLVHWS3IU-N, TN1R23NN, TLVUE4IU-N, TLVUW3IU-N,
TCAA19ANANN(A), TFHOBINNOD2, TM12ANNAGMO, Gen11NAN,
TMO5NNNABMO, TM15FNNAHDO, and TM15FNNATYO,
TM19FNNAHD2

TTA20ANEBN, TLVUWS3IU-N, TFGMEIBBCD1, TFGMEIBBCD?2,
TFGMEIBBCD3, TMOSFNNAGMO, TMO5FNNAGMZ1, TN1T23NN,
TFHOBINNOD1, TLVHMS3IU-N, TLVLP3IU-N, TTA20BNGNN,

344 Patent | TTA20BNGBN, TLVLM3IU-N, Gen10BTNBU, TTA20BNENN,
TTA20BNEBN, TVA20ANFNN, TVA20ANFBN, TTA20ANENN,
TTA20ANEBN, Gen10ALNB, Gen10AL, Gen10BLNB, Gen10BL,
TL3HEB-N, TL3LNB-N, Gen10DLNB, Gen10DL, Gen10CLNB,
Gen10CL, TTA19ANENN, TTA19ANEBN, Gen10BTBU, Gen10LNB,
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Asserted Patent | Exemplary LGE DI Products Practicing and Protected by Patent

Genl0L, TLVHE4IU-N, TLVHW3IU-N, TN1R23NN, TLVUE4IU-N,
TLVUWS3IU-N, TLVUM3IU-N, TLHOBINNOD1, TCAA19ANANN(A),
TLHOBENNOD1, TLHOBDNNOB2, TLHOBDNNOB1, TL21BNN2,
TL21BNN1, TL19BNN, TFHOBINNOD2, Gen10, TM12ANNAGMO,
Genl0A, Genl0D, Genl0C, Gen11NAN, Genl1l0B, TMO1GAN-N,
TMO1LA-N, TMO1LANAJL, TMO3LNNATYO0, TMO5NNNABMO,
TM15FNNAHDO, TM15FNNATYO0, TM19FNNAHD?2,
TMO3LNNAHDO, and TMO3LNNATY1

TTA20ANEBN, TLVUW3IU-N, TFGMEIBBCD1, TFGMEIBBCD?2,
TFGMEIBBCD3, TMO5FNNAGMO, TMO5FNNAGM1, TN1T23NN,
TFHOBINNOD1, TLVHMS3IU-N, TLVLP3IU-N, TTA20BNGNN,
TTA20BNGBN, TLVLM3IU-N, GenlOBTNBU, TTA20BNENN,
TTA20BNEBN, TVA20ANFNN, TVA20ANFBN, TTA20ANENN,
TTA20ANEBN, Genl0ALNB, GenlOAL, Genl0BLNB, GenlOBL,
TL3HEB-N, TL3LNB-N, Genl0DLNB, Genl0DL, GenlOCLNB,
Genl0CL, TTA19ANENN, TTA19ANEBN, Gen10BTBU, Gen10LNB,
'876 Patent GenlOL, TLVHE4IU-N, TLVHWS3IU-N, TN1R23NN, TLVUE4IU-N,
TLVUW3IU-N, TLVUMSIU-N, TLHOBINNOD1, TCAA19ANANN(A),
TLHOBENNOD1, TLHOBDNNOB2, TLHOBDNNOB1, TL21BNNZ2,
TL21BNN1, TL19BNN, TFHOBINNODZ2, Genl10, TM12ANNAGMO,
Genl0A, GenlOD, Genl0C, GenllNAN, Genl0B, TMO1GAN-N,
TMO1LA-N, TMO1LANAJL, TMO3LNNATYO, TMO5NNNABMO,
TM15FNNAHDO, TM15FNNATYO, TM19FNNAHD2,
TMO3LNNAHDO, and TMO3LNNATY1

1. Technical Prong

384. LGE, through the LGE DI Products, practices at least one claim of each of the
’839, ’503, ’344, and 876 Patents. Exs. 87-91. The claims practiced by the LGE DI Products are

listed in the below chart;

Asserted Patents | Domestic Industry Claims
’839 Patent 9-12
’503 Patent 57,8
’344 Patent 2,6
’876 Patent 4-6
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385. Exhibit 87 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary LGE DI Products
practice claims 9-12 of the 839 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted as
examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited LGE DI Product practices those claims,
as will be further established during the investigation.

386. Exhibit 88 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary LGE DI Products
practice claims 5, 7, and 8 of the *°503 Patent, based on their compliance with LTE-A. Exhibit 89
is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary LGE DI Products practice claims 5, 7, and 8 of
the ’503 Patent, based on their compliance with 5G. The representative products shown within are
charted as examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited LGE DI Product practices
those claims, as will be further established during the investigation.

387. Exhibit 90 is a claim chart showing how certain exemplary LGE DI Products
practice claims 2 and 6 of the 344 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted
as examples only, and the chart demonstrates how each cited LGE DI Product practices those
claims, as will be further established during the investigation.

388. Exhibit91 is a claim chart showing how the LGE DI Products practice claims 4-6
of the 876 Patent. The representative products shown within are charted as examples only, and
the chart demonstrates how each cited LGE DI Product practices those claims, as will be further
established during the investigation.

389. The identification of elements presented in these claim charts are preliminary and
exemplary, and Pantech reserves the right to modify its technical domestic industry theories as a
result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any

investigation instituted from this Complaint.
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2. Economic Prong

390. There is a domestic industry as defined under 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A), (B),
and/or (C), comprising significant investments made in the United States by LGE in plantand
equipment, employment of labor and capital, and substantial investment in exploitation of the

Asserted Patents. Specific, non-limiting examples of such investments are set forth below.

391.

392. The LGE DI Products fall within the scope of the LGE Patent License Agreement.

393.

394. LG Electronics, Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the Republic of
Korea with its principal place of business at LG Twin Towers 20 Yoido-dong, Youngdungpo-gu,
Seoul, South Korea.

395. LGE’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the LGE DI
Products and the 839, ’503, ’344, and ’876 Patents include significant investments and
expenditures in plant and equipment and significant employment of labor and capital.

396. LGE’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the LGE DI
Products and the ’839, ’503, 344, and ’876 Patents further include substantial investments in the

exploitation of the technology claimed by these Asserted Patents.
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397. Taken together, LGE’s domestic investments satisfy the economic prong with
respect to the Asserted Patents under subsections (A), (B), and (C) of Section 337(a)(3).

398. Theunderlying technology, inventions, and earlier-filed applications that the *839,
’344, and ’876 patents continue from and claim priority to, originated with LG. Further, when
assigning* the intellectual property underlyingthe °839, °344,and 876 Patents, LG receivedgrant-
back licenses to that technology, and, through a series of continuation applications, the 839, *344,
and 876 patents.

399. On information and belief, LGE’s significant investments in plant, equipment,
labor, and capital relate to, amongother things, the design, research and development, engineering,
testing, regulatory compliance, sales, marketing, distribution, warehousing, quality control,
warranty and repair, and customer service and support of the LGE DI Products. LGE’s substantial
investments in the exploitation of the technology claimed by the Asserted Patents are based on
investments in at least design, research and development, and engineering relating to technology
claimed by the *839, ’503, ’344, and 876 Patents, which include the LGE DI Products.

a) LGE Electronics, U.S.A., Inc.

400. LGE hasa US headquarters through LG Electronics, U.S.A., Inc. (“LGE USA”),
which is based in New Jersey at 111 Sylvan Ave., Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632.
(https://www.lg.com/us/business/corporate-
profile#:~:text=Based%20in%20Englewo0d%20Cliffs%2C%20N.J.,%2C%20home%20applianc

es%2C%?20and%20more., Ex. 256)

4 The inventors assigned the parent applications to the 839, ’°503, 344, and *876 patents, and any
continuations thereto, to LG Electronics Inc. On February 15,2012, LG Electronics Inc. assigned
the interests to Pantech Co., Ltd. Those interests were eventually assigned to Pantech Corp.
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401. On information and belief, as further explained below, LGE USA shares officers
and employees with the LGE business units and entities that conduct research, development,
design, engineering, testing, distribution, warehousing, support for, regulatory compliance,
marketing, and sales of the LGE DI Products in the United States. This includes officers and
employees working at LGE US’s New Jersey headquarters.

402. LGE has made significant investments in facilities in the U.S. relating to the DI
Products.

403. This includes LGE US’s flagship New Jersey headquarters. Accordingto an LGE
press release, LGE invested $300 million in its US headquarters in New Jersey.
(https://lwww.lg.com/us/PDF/press-release/LG%20-
%20MICHIGAN%20VEHICLE%20COMPONENTS%20PLANT%20-
%20AUG%20%2022%202017%20FINAL%20FINAL.pdf, Ex. 257)

404. The LGE USA headquarters was completed in 2020 and “consist[s] of a 352,000
sq. ft. headquarters facility” with “a 3-story south wing, 4-story north wing, ‘Cube’ connector, and
a 3-story parking garage.” It “include[s] office space, conference rooms, executive offices,
cafeteria, fitness center, mechanical space, loading dock, multi-purpose space, science center, and
showroom. This building is a state-of-the-art facility that is a flagship of green design for both LG
and the city of Englewood Cliffs. The green/sustainable features of this facility include[] rooftop
solar panels that generate 1,500 megawatt hours of electrical power annually, the restoration and
mitigation of five wetlands, the creation of a retention pond to reduce site runoff, indirect site
lighting, and automatic shades to mitigate light pollution.”
(https://lwww.turnerconstruction.com/projects/lg-electronics-usa-inc-north-american-

headquarters, Ex. 258)
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405. LGE USA also has invested in a campus that it has in Huntsville, AL. (https://Ige-
careers.com/individual-business-units/, Ex. 259)

b) LGE Domestic Industry TCU Products

406. According to market research, LG is, globally, the leading supplier of TCUs.
(https://lwww.counterpointresearch.com/insight/global-tcu-sales-up-8-yoy-in-2024-lg-continues-
to-lead/, Ex. 97; https://www.businesskorea.co.kr/news/articleView.html?idxno=90763, Ex. 98)

407. Asof2022,the USwas amongthe top three geographiesin the global TCU market.
(https://lwww.counterpointresearch.com/insight/global-tcu-shipments-2021, Ex. 99)

408. Oninformation and belief, LG Electronics Vehicle Solution (VS) Company is the
business unit of LGE USA responsible for the engineering, research and development, testing,
support, repair, marketing, warehousing, distribution, and sales of the LGE TCU products in the
United States.

409. Oninformation and belief, LGE treats LG Electronics Vehicle Solutions Company
as a business unit of LGE USA.

410. For example, an LG press release explained that LGE USA’s “senior vice
president” was also “head of the LG Vehicle Components North American Business Center....”
Ex. 257.

411. As another example, a press release from the Michigan Economic Development
Corporation regarding LG’s establishment of its Hazel Park facilities explained that “LG
Electronics USA Inc. ... operates four business units,” including “Vehicle Components, which
collaborates with General Motors on the Chevrolet Bolt EV.”
(https://lwww.michiganbusiness.org/press-releases/2017/08/catalytic-projects-highlight-msf-

board-approvals/, Ex. 260) See also, e.g., https://www.linkedin.com/in/colin-brady-a6494869/,
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Ex. 261 (LGE Validation Manager with TCU responsibilities listing employer on LinkedIn as “LG
Electronics North America”).

412. Oninformation and belief, members of LGE USA’s Vehicle Components business
unit work out of LGE USA’s New Jersey headquarters.

413. As a non-limiting example, LinkedIn shows that a “Mobile and Telematics
Engineer” for “LG Electronics Vehicle component Solutions” has been working out of LGE
USA’s New Jersey headquarters since November 2023. (https://www.linkedin.com/in/pchoi63/,
Ex. 262) His work has included, e.g.,: (a) leading development of 5G TCU technology (“[l]ed
development and validation of 5G SA/NSA technology for BMW eSIM integration in concept
vehicles, ensuringthatthe latesttelematics capabilities were fully functional, tested,and integrated
into the advanced for real-world deployment.”); (2) working with US telecommunications carriers
to ensure network compatibility of TCUs (“Collaborated closely with Mobile Network Operators
(MNO:s), including Verizon, to ensure seamless network compatibility and connectivity for these
early-stage vehicle technologies.”); and (3) TCU regulatory compliance and technical support.
Id.

414. According to one of LGE’s websites, “Based in Troy, Mich., LG Electronics
Vehicle Components USAisthe U.S. Engineering and sales organization under the LG Electronics
Vehicle component Solutions Company, which ... provides ... solutions including in-vehicle ...
connectivity ... solutions for Software Defined Vehicles.” (https://www.lgnova.com/news/lg-
vehicle-solutions-joins-lg-nova-innovation-program-to-explore-collaborations-with-startups-in-
mobility#:~:text=About%20LG%20Vehicle%20Components%20USA,.com/global/mobility, Ex.
93); LG Electronics Vehicle Solution (VS) Company has a North American Headquarters in at

1835 Technology Drive, Troy, Michigan 48083, with local U.S. offices in Silicon Valley and
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Dallas, Texas. (https://www.lg.com/global/mobility/about-our-company/where-to-find-us, Ex.
92).

415. On information and belief, LG Electronics Vehicle Solution (VS) Company
operates as LG Electronics Vehicle Components U.S.A., LLC.

416. Oninformation and belief, LG Electronics Vehicle Components U.S.A., LLC, has
at least 190 employees working at 1835 Technology Dr., Bldg. E, Troy, MI 48083. Ex. 94.

417. On informationand belief, LG Electronics Vehicle Components U.S.A., LLC has
at least 140 employees working at 1400 E 10 Mile Rd., Ste. 100, Hazel Park, M1 48030. Exs. 26,
94.

418. According to available press releases, in 2017, LGE invested approximately
$25,000,000 in establishing the Hazel Park, Ml location, and expanding LGE’s R&D facilities in
Troy. (https:/iwww.prnewswire.com/news-releases/Ig-electronics-to-establish-us-factory-for-
electric-vehicle-components-in-michigan-300507822.html, Ex. 263)

419. On information and belief, LGE, through LGE USA’s Vehicle Solution (VS)
business unit, conduct various work relating to the TCU DI Products in both the Troy and Hazel
Park facilities, and those employees who work in those locations.

420. LG Electronics Vehicle Solution employs teams of engineers who conduct
research, development, design, testing, servicing, repair,and U.S. customer support of LGE’s TCU
products, in the Troy, Ml location. Such engineers work with automakers in the U.S., including
General Motors.

421. Asanon-limitingexample, LinkedIn shows that LGE has employed a “Telematics
Integration Engineer” in Troy, Michigan, since July 2021, whose responsibilities include

“[s]erv[ing] as feature expert for GM Telematics Platform including feature validation” and
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“[s]erv[ing] as liaison between customer and LG HQ, via supporting customer issue reports and
requests as well as in-field issue triage....” (https://www.linkedin.com/in/jeremy-mannikko-
26bab8b3/, Ex. 264)

422. Asanother example, LGE’s “Director of North America Program Management on
Automotive” isbased at LGE’s Troy facilities, and “[o]verthe last 2 years, ... was ... leading North
Telematics program management and technical support.” (https://www.linkedin.com/in/jerry-
hyun-272419a/, Ex. 265)

423. As a further example, LGE employs sales teams in Michigan, including a sales
executive who “focusing on ... telematics....” (https://www.linkedin.com/in/pablo-
zambrano48307/, Ex. 266)

424. As another non-limiting example, “LG Electronics USA” is currently hiring for a
“Quality Engineer 1 Bilingual” position in LG Vehicle Solution’s Troy location.
(https://jobs.mitalent.org/job-seeker/job-details/JobCode/303108035, Ex.  267) The
responsibilities include “[a]ssist multi-disciplinary engineering teams in resolving technical and
repair issues related to Telematics/Infotainment systems” and “[p]articipate in weekly customer
product development team meetings to provide updates on quality -related issues.” 1d.

425. On information and belief, employees at LGE’s Hazel Park, Ml facilities also
perform work related to the LGE TCU Products, since that facility is also used by the LG Vehicle
Solution business unit, and over 140 Vehicle Solution employees work there. Exs. 26, 94.

426. On information and belief, LGE, through LGE USA and LG Vehicle Component
Solutions, also employs telematics engineers at other locations in the United States. For instance,
LGE employs a “Principal Engineer” in Bellevue, Washington, whose responsibilities include

certifying LGE’s TCU’s for use on US cellular provider’s networks: “[lJead MNO Carrier
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Certification (IoT) for LG Vehicle component Solution.” (https://www:.linkedin.com/in/kenchol/,
Ex. 268)

427. On information and belief, LGE USA, through the LG Vehicle Solution business
unit, also employs engineers in Northern California (see, e.g.,
https://www.linkedin.com/in/sunghun-kwak/, Ex. 269) and Virginia (see, e.g,
https://www.linkedin.com/in/linh-nguyen-995294348/, Ex. 270)

428. Oninformation and belief, LGE sells its TCUs to at least the following automakers
foruse in the U.S. market: General Motors, Ford, Stellantis, Toyota, Honda, Hyundai-Kia Motor
Company, Volkswagen, Mercedes Benz, and BMW. (See https://www.linkedin.com/in/sinae-
kim-229828204/, Ex. 271, list of “NA market-based OEM accounts”)

429. On information and belief, even to the extent that LGE USA and LG Vehicle
Solution direct U.S. employees and use U.S. facilities for products other than the TCUs, LGE
USA'’s investments of capital and labor, and in facilities and equipment relating to the TCUs are
necessarily a substantial portion of such overall investments. LGE USA necessarily invests
heavily in facilities and equipment, and employment and labor in order to support the sales, and
the concomitant research and development, engineering, testing, regulatory clearance, and
technical and other support for the underlying TCU products and patented technology, especially
considering that LGE USA markets to, sells to, jointly developments TCU technology with, and
provides support to nearly many auto makers who sell cars in the United States, including U.S.-
based automakers like General Motors and Ford.

430. LGE USA’s investments in supplying automakers who sell and make vehicles in

the U.S. have been highly successful, and as a result, LGE has received numerous awards from
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automakers, including those based in the U.S., for the products and services that LGE USA has
provided, including locally within Michigan.

431. Forexample, LG Electronics issued a pressrelease on April 14,2025, entitled “LG
Recognized  as 2024  Supplier of the Year by General = Motors.”
(https://www.lg.com/global/mobility/media-center/press-release/lg-recognized-as-2024-supplier-
of-the-year-by-general-motors, Ex. 95). In that press release. the President of LG’s Vehicle
Solution Company stated that “‘[t]his latest recognition from GM serves as a testament to our
commitment to developing and reliably supplying innovative automotive solutions’....”

432. As another non-limiting example, LG Electronics issued a press release on April
22,2025, entitled “LG Honored with Toyota’s ‘Excellent Value Improvement Award’ for the First
Time.” That press release states that “LG Electronics (LG), a mobile sector technology leader, has
been awarded the 2024 Excellent Value Improvement Award by Toyota Motor North America
(TMNA) for the first time. https://www.lg.com/global/mobility/media-center/press-release/lg-
honored-with-toyota-excellent-value-improvement-award-for-the-first-time#.~:text=Corporate, -
Print&text=SEOUL%2C%20April%2022%2C%202025%20%E2%80%94, TMNA)%20for%20t
he%20first%20time, Ex. 96) The award was presented at TMNA’s Annual Supplier Business
Meeting in the U.S. This award recognizes LG’s contributions to component quality and
technological innovation in Toyota’s largest market, North America.” It also explains that LG’s
“partnership” with Toyota “expanded in 2019 to include advanced telematics for TMNA. The LG
Vehicle Solution Company leverages itsexpertise in 5G telematics technology to deliver advanced
connectivity solutions tailored for the automotive industry. The company provides versatile
telematics control units (TCUs) available in both standalone and integrated-antenna

configurations. These TCUs feature cutting-edge capabilities, including 5G connectivity, Vehicle-
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to-Everything (V2X) communication, and robust cybersecurity measures. The press release also
quote LG Vehicle Solution USA’s president, who stated: “‘[oJur advanced telematics solutions
priority vehicle connectivity and safety, helping Toyota realize its vision for the future of mobility
through cutting-edge technologies and continued partnership.’”

433. LGE USA is also investing in collaborations with mobility startups in the through
LGE USA employees in Northern California. For example, on October 10, 2024, LG Electronics
issued a press release entitled, “LG Vehicle Solutions Joins LG Nova Innovation Program to
Explore Collaborations with Startups in Mobility.” Accordingto the press release, “LG NOVA,
the North American Innovation Center for global innovation leader LG Electronics, is a team
focused on bringing innovation from the outside to LG. LG NOVA is based in Santa Clara, Calif.”
(https:/www.lgnova.com/news/lg-vehicle-solutions-joins-lg-nova-innovation-program-to-
explore-collaborations-with-startups-in-
mobility#:~:text=About%20LG%20Vehicle%20Components%20USA,.com/global/mobility, Ex.
93)

434, LGE, through LGE USA and LG Vehicle Solution Company, is continuing to
develop and expand its domestic industry for the TCUs.

C) LGE Domestic Industry AP Module Products

435. According to a press release issued by LGE, LG Innotek is responsible for
developing and marketing the LGE AP Module products.
(https://www.lgcorp.com/media/release/28713, Ex. 272)

436. LGE “accounted on February 25[, 2025] that it will launch a new electronic
component for vehicles, the Automotive Application Processor Module(AP Module), targeting

automotive semiconductor components worldwide. ... LG Innotek is currently promoting the
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product to global semiconductor companies in North America and other regions, hoping to start
mass-producing it in the second half of this year. ... LG Innotek is planning to grow its
semiconductor components business to 3 billion dollars in annual sales by 2030, largely based on
high-value semiconductor substrates such as FC-BGA(Flip-Chip Ball Grid Array), RF-SiP(Radio
Frequency-System in Package) and Autom[o]tive AP modules.” Id.

437. Accordingto LG Innotek’s website, LG Innotek’s U.S. affiliate, LG Innotek USA
Inc. (“LG Innotek USA”), is headquartered at 2540 N. 1st St., Ste. 400, San Jose CA 95131-1016.
(https://www.lginnotek.com/company/domestic_campus.lgit?locale=en, Ex. 273)

438. Oninformationand belief, LG Innotek USA performs at leastsalesand engineering
functions relating to the LGE AP Modules. Id.

439. Oninformation and belief, LG Innotek USA has at least 14 employees working in
San Jose, California, including sales and engineering employees. Ex. 274.

440. LG Innotek USA has additional U.S. offices at 2800 Livernois, Ste. 105, Troy, Ml
48083, and 7220 Trade St,  Ste. 162, San Diego, CA 92121
(https://lwww.lginnotek.com/company/domestic_campus.lgit?locale=en, Ex. 273)

441. LGE is continuingto develop and expand its domestic industry for the AP Module
products. For instance, LG Innotek USA is currently hiring for research and development
positions relating to the AP Modules at its US headquarters location. As a non-limiting example,
LG Innotek USA currently hasa job openingfora “Lead Architect, Automotive HPC SoC5 (R&D

Lab)” in San Jose. (https://lge-careers.com/posting/?job_id=4750257008, Ex. 275)

5 “SoC” stands for “system on chip.”
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3. LGE Also Employs Workers in the US to Obtain US Regulatory and
Other Clearances for the DI Products

442. On information and belief, and as shown through non-limiting examples above,
LGE additionally employs workers in the U.S. to obtains regulatory clearance and other
certifications so that LGE can sell the LGE DI Products in the U.S., and the LGE DI Products can
be used on U.S. LTE, LTE-A, and 5G telecommunications networks.

443. Asanexample, LGE USA obtains regulatory clearance and other certifications for
the LGE DI Products. Forexample, LGE USemployeesobtaincertificationsfromthe U.S. Federal
Communication Commission (“FCC”) so that the LGE DI Products can be sold in the U.S. See,
e.g., Ex. 250 at 4.

444, On information and belief, and as described in part above, LGE USA also works
with U.S. LTE, LTE-A, and 5G cellular providers (e.g., AT&T, Verizon), to obtain clearances for
the LGE DI Products to be sold in the U.S. and used on such providers’ cellular networks.

445, LGE isexpected to provide additional bases and supporting information under this
Section IX(B) through discovery or otherwise. Such bases andinformation are expected to include,
without limitation, data on LGE’s domestic investments in labor (including information on the
number of domestic employees, responsibilities of employees, and salaries and other costs
associated with such employees), facilities (including expenditures on facilities), equipment
(including information on types and cost of equipment implemented at facilities), capital,
marketing, and research and development in TCUs and AP Modules, including the LGE DI
Products. Discovery from LGE is also expected to provide bases by which to apportion overall
domestic investments to the LGE DI Products, such as through percentage of sales made up by

such products or through records identifying work performed.
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X. RELIEF REQUESTED

446. Respondents have infringed and will continue to infringe the Asserted Patents as
specified in Section V, supra, unless the Commission prohibits the sale for importation,
importation into and sale within the United States after importation of the Accused Products.

447.  Accordingly, Pantech respectfully requests that the Commission provide the
following relief:

a) institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(1) of the
Tariff Actof 1930, asamended, 19 U.S.C. 8 1337, into Respondents’ violations of
Section 337 arising from the sale for importation into the United States,
importation, and/or sale within the United States after importation of certain
wireless communication equipment that infringes the Asserted Patents;

b) schedule and conduct a hearing, pursuant to Section 337(c), for purposes of
receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether Respondents have
violated Section 337 and, following the hearing, determine that Respondents have
violated Section 337;

C) issue a permanent limited exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d),
excluding from entry into the United States Respondents’ wireless communication
equipment that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents, including,
without limitation, the specific Accused Products identified in this Complaint and
the exhibits hereto;

d) issue permanent orders, pursuant to Section 337(f), directing Respondents
to cease and desistfrom importing, selling, selling forimportation, offering for sale,

using, demonstrating, promoting, marketing, and/or advertising in the United States
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Respondents’ wireless communicationequipment thatinfringes one or more claims
of the Asserted Patents, including, without limitation, the specific Accused
Products identified in this Complaint and the exhibits hereto;

e) impose a bond on importation and sales of infringing products during the
60-day Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); and

f) grantall such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law,

based upon the facts complained of hereinand as determined by the investigation.

Dated: July 2, 2025 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ James A. Fussell, 111
James A. Fussell, 111

Tiffany A. Miller

Clark Bakewell

Courtney Krawice

Wm. Brady Nash

Mayer Brown LLP

1999 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006-1101
Tel.: +1 202.263.3000

Graham (Gray) Buccigross
Mayer Brown LLP

3000 EI Camino Real

2 Palo Alto Square, Ste. 300
Palo Alto, CA 94306-2112
Tel.: +1 650.331.2000

Counsel for Complainant Pantech Corp.
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VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

I, Dr. Yang-Won Jung, declare as follows, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a)(1),
and under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States.

1. T am the Senior Vice President of Pantech Corporation, and am duly authorized by
Complainant Pantech Corporation to execute this verification of the accompanying
Complaint under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.

2. Thave read the foregoing Complaint and am aware of its contents.

3. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, and based upon a reasonable inquiry
under the circumstances, the allegations and other factual contentions of the Complaint are
well-grounded in fact and have evidentiary support, or, where specifically identified, are
likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation
or discovery.

4. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, formed after a reasonable inquiry,
the claims and other legal contentions set forth in the Complaint are warranted by existing
law or by good-faith, non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal
of existing law, or by the establishment of new law.

5. The Complaint is not being filed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause
unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the Investigation or any related

proceeding.

Executed on July 2, 2025.

P
\Dﬂﬂﬁlmon Jung
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